N
e
I =

o A

PHILADELPHIA
LAND BANK s ene

Board of Director’s Meeting
August 23, 2018 - 3:30 PM
Agenda

Roll Call

Public Comment

Approval of Minutes for the Meeting of July 12, 2018

Property Dispositions

e 1248-525. 23" Street

Resolution Approving Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding Between the
Philadelphia Land Bank, the City of Philadelphia, Philadelphia School District and Philadelphia
Gas Works to Coordinate the Acquisition of Tax Delinquent Properties

Resolution Authorizing Personnel To Execute Settlement Sheet on Behalf of Philadelphia Land
Bank Upon Approval of the Executive Director, Director of Real Estate, or Senior Counsel
Executive Director's Report (including update on property transfers, acquisition, and sales)

Adjournment
THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC



PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
BOARD MEETING MINUTES

P —— e —————————— e ——— e ——
e e e e ————————d

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Thursday,
July 12, 2018, in the offices of the Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation, being its
regular meeting place, 17th Floor, 1234 Market Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, pursuant to

proper notices.

CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Dunbar called the meeting to order at 3:48 p.m.

ANNOUNCEMENT
Steve Cusano, Senior Counsel, announced that prior to today’s Public Session, the Board held an

Executive Session regarding (1) that certain litigation matter entitled "OCF Universal, LP v.
Kenyatta Johnson, the Philadelphia Land Bank, and the City of Philadelphia”, filed in the U.S.
District Court for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, case number 2017-CV03134 WB; (2) that
certain litigation matter entitled "City of Philadelphia v. Sinchi Brothers Construction, Inc." filed
in the Philadelphia Court of Common Pleas, Case No. 1702T0276, involving a Petition to Set
Aside Sheriff's Sale; (3) that certain litigation matter entitled "City of Philadelphia v. Columbia
Investment Corp. and Philadelphia Land Bank" filed in the Philadelphia Court of Common Pleas,
Case No. 1411T0601, involving a Petition to Set Aside Sheriff's Sale; (4) that certain litigation
matter entitled "City of Philadelphia v. Reynolds H. Davis, Irene M. Davis, Projo, Inc. and
Philadelphia Land Bank" filed in the Philadelphia Court of Common Pleas, Case No.
1611T0322, involving a Petition to Set Aside Sheriff's Sale; (5) that certain litigation matter
entitled "City of Philadelphia v. Ridge Avenue Partners LLC, et al." filed in the Philadelphia
Court of Common Pleas, Case No. 1704T0296, involving a Motion to Redeem Premises
regarding 2129 W. Oxford Ave: and (6) that certain litigation matter entitled "City of
Philadelphia v. Ridge Avenue Partners LLC, et al." filed in the Philadelphia Court of Common
Pleas, Case No. 1704T0300, involving a Motion to Redeem Premises regarding 2133 W. Oxford
Ave. During Executive Session, Greg Heller, Executive Director, and Ryan Harmon, General
Counsel, for the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, made a presentation and the Board
received information regarding 5423-27 Lena Street.

Agenda Item 1
Roll Call

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Christian Dunbar, Michael
Koonce, Rick Sauer, Paulette Adams, Jennifer Kates, Dominique Casimir, and Majeedah Rashid.

The following members of the Board of Directors were not present: Richard DeMarco, Blane
Stoddard, Lauren Vidas, and Courtney Voss.

The following staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Steve Cusano, Esq., Christi
Jackson, Andrea Saah, Esq., Stephen Novotny, Bradley Vassallo, and Marla Clark.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 1 of 41



Public Attendees: The list of public attendees is attached to these minutes.

A quorum of directors was present and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with
business. '

Agenda Item 2
Public Comment

Mr. Dunbar asked if any member of the public wished to comment upon any item on the Board’s
agenda.

There were no comments from the public.

Agenda Item 3
Approval of Board Minutes

Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the minutes of the Board meeting of June 14, 2018.

Ms. Casimir made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board meeting of June 14, 2018. The
motion was seconded by Ms. Rashid.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the minutes of the June
14, 2018 Board meeting as presented.

Agenda Item 4 (Item 7 on Agenda)
Resolution Authorizing Acquisition of 5423-27 Lena St; Conveyance of 5423-27 Lena St to

the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority; and a Purchase and Management Agreement
Between the Land Bank and the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("PRA")

Mr. Cusano provided an overview of the Purchase and Management Agreement ("PMA")
concerning 5423-27 Lena Street. The Board deliberated and asked numerous questions, which
Mr. Rodriguez and Mr. Cusano addressed. Mr. Koonce requested that the PMA provide that the
Land Bank have the authority, in its sole discretion, to direct all litigation and resolution of
claims in connection with PRA's obligation to indemnify and defend the Land Bank. Mr. Sauer
requested that the PMA contain a provision indicating that PRA will endeavor to issue a request
for proposals to obtain a new, responsible developer who will preserve 5423-27 Lena Street as

affordable rental housing.

Upon completion of the Board's deliberation, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the
Resolution Authorizing Acquisition of 5423-27 Lena St; Conveyance of 5423-27 Lena St to

PRA; and the PMA.
Mr. Koonce made a motion to approve the resolution with the following two (2) amendments (i)

that the Land Bank have the authority, in its sole discretion, to direct all litigation and resolution
of claims in connection with PRA's obligation to indemnify and defend the Land Bank; and (ii)

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 2 of 41



that the PMA contain a provision indicating that PRA will endeavor to issue a request for
proposals to obtain a new, responsible developer who will preserve 5423-27 Lena Street as
affordable rental housing. The motion was seconded by Ms. Casimir.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing Acquisition of 5423-27 Lena St; Conveyance of 5423-27 Lena St to PRA; and the
PMA attached as Exhibit A to these minutes, as amended.

Agenda Item 5 (Item 4 on Agenda)
Property Dispositions

A. 1248-52 S. 237 Street
The Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of 1248-52 S. 23" Street was tabled.

B. 1106 North Street
Mr. Novotny requested that the Board approve the conveyance of 1106 North Strect as a side

yard to the adjacent owner, Louise Smith, who resides at 1108 North Street. The property is
already being maintained by the Applicant as a Side Yard and the Applicant is compliant and in
good standing with the City of Philadelphia. The property will be conveyed as a side yard for a
nomirial ($1) price because it qualifies for an exception due to Ms. Smith being a longtime
homeowner who is currently maintaining the property, as provided for in the Disposition
Policies. A 30-year mortgage will be placed on the property for full market value which would
become due should the applicant sell the property. The disposition received VPRC approval on
June 12, 2018 and City Council approval on June 21, 2018.

C. 2022 Kimball Street
Mr. Novotny requested that the Board approve the conveyance of 2022 Kimball Street to V2

Properties, LLC, for a price of $175,000. The property was posted as a Competitive Sale and
only one application was received. The developer proposes to construct a 3-bedroom single-
family home for sale to a homebuyer. V2 Properties has extensive development experience,
having completed over 250 projects in Philadelphia, and is compliant and in good standing with
the City of Philadelphia. The disposition received VPRC approval on April 10, 2018 and City
Council approval on May 17, 2018. The EOP will not apply to this project, as single-family

homes are exempt.

D. 2145-49 N. 15th Street
Mr. Novotny requested that the Board approve the conveyance of 2145-49 N. 15th Street for a

nominal price ($1 each) to Susquehanna Square LP, a limited partnership formed with a sole
purpose and a wholly-owned corporate subsidiary of Community Ventures, which serves as the
sole general partner. The 3 parcels are part of a proposed LIHTC scattered-site development of
37 units of affordable rental housing, serving households with incomes up to 60% AMI. In
addition, 18 units will be developed.to various standards of accessibility. The development team
has significant experience successfully developing projects of similar type, scope, and target
population, and the developer is compliant and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia.
The disposition received VPRC approval on June 12, 2018 and City Council approval on June
14,2018. The EOP will apply to this project.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 3 of 41



The Board deliberated and asked questions regarding the conveyance of 1106 North Street, 2022
Kimball Street, and 2145-49 N. 15th Street, which the Land Bank staff addressed.

Upon completion of the Board's deliberation, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the
Resolutions Authorizing Conveyance of 1106 North Street, 2022 Kimball Street, and 2145-49 N.

15th Street.

Ms. Rashid made a motion to approve the Resolutions Authorizing Conveyance of 1106 North
Street, 2022 Kimball Street, and 2145-49 N. 15th Street. The motion was seconded by Mr.

Koonce.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolutions
Authorizing Conveyance of 1106 North Street, 2022 Kimball Street, and 2145-49 N. 15th Street
attached as Exhibit B, C, and D, respectively, to these minutes.

Agenda Item 6 (Item S on Agenda)
Resolution Approving Philadelphia Land Bank Operating Budget for FY Ending 2019

Mr. Cusano asked that the Board approve the Resolution for the Land Bank's 2019 Operating
Budget. Mr. Rodriguez presented the budget to the Board. The Board deliberated and asked Mr.
Rodriguez several questions, which he answered.

Upon completion of the Board's deliberation, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the
Resolution Approving Philadelphia Land Bank Operating Budget for FY Ending 2019.

Mr. Koonce made a motion to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by Ms. Adams.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Approving Philadelphia Land Bank Operating Budget for FY Ending 2019 attached as Exhibit E

to these minutes.

Agenda Item 7 (Item 6 on Agenda)
Resolution Granting Authorization to Acquire Properties at Judicial Sale, Subject to

Certain Terms and Conditions

Mr. Cusano asked that the Board approve the Resolution Granting Authorization to Acquire
Properties at Judicial Sale, Subject to Certain Terms and Conditions with a spending limit of
$1,500,000 and an expiration date of September 30, 2018. Mr. Cusano explained the resolution
to the Board. The Board deliberated and asked several questions which Mr. Rodriguez and Mr.

Cusano answered.

Upon completion of the Board's deliberation, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the
Resolution Granting Authorization to Acquire Properties at Judicial Sale, Subject to Certain

Terms and Conditions.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 4 of 41



Mr. Sauer made a motion to approve the resolution with a spending limit of $1,500,000 and an
expiration date of September 30, 2018. The motion was seconded by Ms. Casimir.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Granting Authorization to Acquire Properties at Judicial Sale, Subject to Certain Terms and
Conditions with aspending limit of $1,500,000 and an expiration date of September 30, 2018,

attached as Exhibit F to these minutes.

Agenda Item 8

Resolution Authorizing a Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Memorandum of
Understanding Between Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority and Philadelphia Land Bank

Mr. Cusano asked that the Board approve the Resolution Authorizing a Third Amendment to
Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding Between PRA and the Land Bank. Mr.
Cusano explained the resolution to the Board. The Board deliberated and asked several
questions which Mr. Rodriguez and Mr. Cusano answered.

Upon completion of the Board's deliberation, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the
Resolution Authorizing a Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding

Between PRA and the Land Bank.

Mr. Sauer made a motion to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by Ms. Kates.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing a Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding Between

PRA and the Land Bank attached as Exhibit G to these minutes.

Agenda Item 9

Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement Between Philadelphia Land
Bank and Interface Studio LLC for 2019 Strategic Plan

Mr. Cusano asked that the Board approve the Resolution Authorizing Professional Services
Agreement Between Philadelphia Land Bank and Interface Studio LLC for 2019 Strategic Plan.
Mr. Rodriguez and Mr. Cusano explained the resolution to the Board. The Board deliberated and
asked several questions which Mr. Rodriguez and Mr. Cusano answered.

Upon completion of the Board's deliberation, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the
Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement Between Philadelphia Land Bank and
Interface Studio LLC for the 2019 Strategic Plan.

Ms. Casimir made a motion to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by Mr.
Koonce.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing Professional Services Agreement Between Philadelphia Land Bank and Interface
Studio LLC for 2019 Strategic Plan attached as Exhibit H to these minutes.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 5 of 41



Agenda Item 10
Resolution Authorizing Execution of Documents Necessary to Utilize Republic Bank,
Subiject to Certain Terms and Conditions

Mr. Cusano asked that the Board approve the Resolution Authorizing Execution of Documents
Necessary to Utilize Republic Bank, Subject to Certain Terms and Conditions. Mr. Cusano
explained the resolution to the Board. The Board deliberated and asked several questions which

Mr. Rodriguez and Mr. Cusano answered.

Upon completion of the Board's deliberation, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to approve the
Resolution Authorizing Execution of Documents Necessary to Utilize Republic Bank, Subject to

Certain Terms and Conditions.

Ms. Casimir made a motion to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by Mr.
Koonce.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution
Authorizing Execution of Documents Necessary to Utilize Republic Bank, Subject to Certain
Terms and Conditions attached as Exhibit I to these minutes.

Agenda Item 11
Executive Director's Report

Mr. Rodriguez distributed the handouts attached as Exhibit J to these minutes.

Mr. Rodriguez provided the Board with an update on completed acquisitions and upcoming
delinquent tax acquisitions for June 2018 as indicated on Exhibit J and answered questions from
the Board regarding acquisitions. Mr. Rodriguez then provided the Board with a fiscal update as
indicated on Exhibit J and answered questions from the Board. He also provided the Board with
an update on dispositions, explained the disposition handouts included in Exhibit J to these
minutes, and answered questions from the Board regarding dispositions.

Mr. Rodriguez then provided the Board with an update on the status of the Land Bank’s
processing of single Expressions of Interest ("EOIs™) submitted for a Land Bank property. He
indicated that the staff is developing an improved methodology for responding to multiple EOls
received for Land Bank properties with either a competitive bid process or a Request for
Proposal process for larger assemblages. He also announced that the Land Bank is working on
an update to the Land Bank’s website. Mr. Rodriguez answered questions from the Board
regarding the website and the process and time frame for responding to, processing and reporting

on EOIs.
CONTINUED ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 6 of 41



Agenda Item 12
Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Dunbar called for a motion to
adjourn the meeting.

Ms. Kates made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Koonce seconded the motion.

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Dunbar
declared the meeting adjourned at 5:21 p.m.

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 7 of 41



. B /&Vyfv _f, PN\ Ty

GUEST SIGN-IN SHEET

iE PHILADELPHIA
S8 LAND BANK
ROARD QF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING
Thursday, hily 12, 2018 at 330 "M
1234 Market Street, 3 .~¢, Floor, Philadeiphia, PA 19107

ALL GUESTS ARE REQUIRED TO SiGn-il
THIS SIGN-IN SHEET WHL BE PART DF THE MEETING MINUTES AND ARV INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN Wil BE MADE MIBLIK

- - Y e e . s — T —

.u

L~ NAME ﬁ ,__.8__,..354 mz_a.. e

Nuﬁ ¥ u C— ...W.‘Wwwwuf,.z,f Wﬁ?k M,K, u,., , ,.wu.:.«:.‘,k,-m. .n,a.&m " A
*y?..,m.,.i;fé TV olo &r:. ﬁraarrw mmwﬁ«.a 0w

i R i
Sveany, (o z,.ff e Sivve vt G
_ 1
TR YT DERIGY DGR

wevn

]
b
H
3

{
%%?aw.uu% &kn?ha K%w& $ 1A S

&,ﬁéﬁ msmﬁmp%?

e s sm i s e i 3

O o Calde &3

hwklfm_.m D (nw ﬁﬁ%«».ﬁih

i mv (@JN&M LA M‘ﬂ m./cw.tq}\u.. 8 b __

| _m

-

, m i

¥ ————— R - - - S— R e — e e e

| W w

v . L S———— — | | - _— -

Page 8 of 41

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018



EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -31
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ACQUISITION OF 5423-27 LENA STREET;
CONVEYANCE OF 5423-27 LENA STREET TO THE PHILADELPHIA
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY; AND A PURCHASE AND MANAGEMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK AND THE
PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

“WHEREAS, the Commonwealth Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. §§ 2101, ef seq., ("Land
Bank Act") authorizes a land bank to acquire property exposed for sale under the Municipal
Claim and Tax Lien Law, 53 P.S. §§ 7101, ef seq.;

WHEREAS, section 16-705(2) of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia
Land Bank (“Land Bank”) to acquire real property or interests in real property through all legal
means, subject to certain stated terms and conditions;

WHEREAS, section 16-705(3)(b) of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Land Bank to
acquire tax delinquent propertics at judicial sales conducted by, or on behalf of, the City of
Philadelphia ("Judicial Sale Properties");

WHEREAS, 5423-27 Lena Street, Philadelphia, PA 19144 ("Premises") is scheduled for
judicial sale on July 18, 2018 (as may be postponed from time to time, "Judicial Sale");

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("PRA") has requested that the
Land Bank purchase the Premises and, once the necessary City Council resolution is obtained,
transfer and convey the Premises to PRA all in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Purchase and Management Agreement ("PMA™). A summary of the major terms the PMA is

attached to this Resolution ("Summary");

WHEREAS, until the Land Bank transfers and conveys the Premises to PRA, PRA will,
among other things, manage the Premises in accordance with the terms and conditions of the

PMA;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Board") is
willing to authorize acquisition of the Premises, conveyance of the Premises to PRA, and
entering into the PMA pursuant to the terms of this Resolution.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized to bid for and acquire the Premises at the
Judicial Sale, as may be postponed from time to time, on behalf of the Land Bank in
accordance with this Resolution, the Land Bank Act, the Philadelphia Code, and any
Memorandum of Understanding to which the Land Bank is a party.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 9 of 41



6.

The Executive Director is further authorized to enter into and sign the PMA on behalf of the
Land Bank, in form and substance acceptable to the Executive Director and Senior Counsel
consistent with the Summary, which must be executed by the Land Bank and PRA prior to

the Judicial Sale.

The authority granted in this Resolution is in addition to any other authority to acquire
Judicial Sale Properties granted in any other resolution. This Resolution shall not affect, or
be deemed to reduce, any authority or amounts to acquire Judicial Sale Properties which the
Board has granted or authorized in any other resolution.

Until the Premises are conveyed to PRA, the Executive Director shall report, at each Regular
Meeting of the Board the physical and operational condition of the Premises, the overall
status of any tenants, and any issues concerning the Premises or the PMA.

The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as
may be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 10 of 41



Summary of Major Terms
Management and Purchase Agreement (the " Agreement™)
Philadelphia Land Bank and Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority
July 2018

A. Background
e PRA has requested that the Land Bank bid for 5423-27 Lena Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

19144-2230 ("Premises") at the Judicial Sale on July 18, 2018, as may be postponed, and, if
successful, transfer and convey the Premises to PRA.
B. Purchase of the Premises
o Conditions Precedent

o

(o}

The Land Bank's obligation to enter a bid to purchase the Premises is conditioned on: (i)
approval by PRA's Board of Directors for PRA to enter into the Agreement and to acquire the
Premises from the Land Bank; (ii) approval by the Land Bank Board of Directors to enter into
the Agreement, acquire the Premises, and convey the Premises to PRA; (iii) PRA obtaining all
required insurance and providing evidence thereof; and (iv) the Premises being available for
purchase at the Judicial Sale.

If any Condition Precedent to Purchase is not satisfied by the date of the Judicial Sale, the
Land Bank may (i) postpone the Judicial Sale to the following month if requested by PRA at
least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the Judicial Sale; or (ii) terminate this Agreement.

Upon satisfaction of all Condition(s) Precedent to Purchase, PRA has no right to terminate the
Agreement for any réason whatsoever.

e Acquisition Cost — The Land Bank will pay all costs to purchase the Premises. There is no
reimbursement from PRA.

C. Management of Premises
o Management Services

o}

e]

o]

PRA shall perform, or cause to be performed, at its sole cost and expense, all things necessary
for the day-to-day management, care, protection, safety, and operation of the Premises. It is

expected that PRA will subcontract the management services to the Philadelphia Housing

Authority or Philadelphia Asset & Property Management Corporation.
PRA shall keep the Land Bank fully informed on at least a bi-weekly basis of the physical and

operational condition of the Premises, the status of each tenant, and all actions taken in
connection therewith. PRA shall immediately report to the Land Bank all emergencies,
extraordinary or unusual actions or conditions.

PRA shall not solicit or allow any new tenants or commence any eviction proceedings or legal
action for the collection of rents. -

PRA shall perform the Management Services until PRA takes title to the Premises.

e Compensation;Management Fee — Land Bank pays PRA $100.00 and PRA is entitled to retain any
and all rents.

e Liability — PRA is solely responsible for any and all sums, costs, expenses, amounts, liabilities,
Impositions, Judgments, and Liens in connection with or relating to, directly or indirectly, the
Premises, this Agreement, or performance of the Management Services.

e Insurance

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 11 of 41



o PRA, and its contractors and subcontractors, are required, at their sole cost and expense, to
obtain and maintain general liability insurance, and workers compensation.

o The Land Bank will purchase casualty/fire insurance at a cost of $3,294 (for 3 months only)
with coverage $2,195.000 and 80% coinsurance provision. To include the Premises under the
Land Bank's current liability policy is estimated to cost an additional $4,040 annually (to be
prorated for actual holding period). PRA will reimburse the Land Bank for these costs.

D. Sale of the Premises

Title — Title is "AS IS" and subject to all (i) Impositions, Judgments, Liens and other title matters
which are not extinguished, released, or discharged by virtue of the Judicial Sale including IRS
liens, Commonwealth tax liens, and Commonwealth inheritance tax liens, (ii) easements,
covenants, agreements, restrictions, and all other matters of record; (iii) facts or conditions that an
inspection or accurate survey would disclose; and (iv) Applicable Laws.

Settlement — No later than September 20, 2018, the Land Bank will request City Counsel to

introduce and adopt a resolution to transfer and convey the Premises to PRA. PRA shall take title

to the Premises in accordance with this Agreement on the Settlement Date designated by the Land

Bank.

Purchase Price — One Dollar ($1.00).

Taxes, Prorations, and Recording Fees — PRA is responsible for all Commonwealth and City

realty transfer taxes; real estate taxes, water, sewer and stormwater fees, and all other utility

charges for all periods prior to and after Settlement; and all fees to record the Deed, and any and
all other documents including any deed necessary to convey the Premises to the Land Bank.

Condition(s) Precedent to Settlement

o Land Bank’s obligation to convey title to the Premises is conditioned on: (a) sheriff's deed
recorded for the Land Bank's purchase of the Premises; (b) the unconditional approval by the
VPRC, City Council, and the Land Bank Board to convey the Premises to PRA; and (c) no
uncured Event of Default.

o Ifany Condition(s) Precedent to Settlement is not satisfied prior to the Settlement Deadline.
the Land Bank may (i) waive any Condition(s) Precedent to Settlement (except for (2) and (b)
above); or (ii) extend the Settlement Date.

Disclaimer of Warranties and Representations — PRA is purchasing the premises in "as is, where

is, with all faults" condition.

E. Indemnification and Release

Indemnification — PRA shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Land Bank from and
against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, etc. relating to, directly or indirectly, (i) the
Agreement; (ii) any Liens, Judgments, or Impositions; (iii) the Premises; (iv) the Management
Services; (v) the actions, omissions, negligence, or willful misconduct, of PRA or any of PRA's
employees, directors, officers, contractors, subcontractors, or agents; among other things.
Release — PRA releases the Land Bank, from any and all actions, causes of actions, suits,
debts,...which PRA has or had or may have against the Land Bank which relates to this

Agreement. the Premises, etc.
Event of Default — 1If PRA fails to cure an Event of Default within thirty days, in addition to any

and all other remedies, PRA pays the Land Bank $2,000 for each day any Event of Default
remains uncured following the Cure Period.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 12 of 41



EXHIBIT B

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 32
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF
1106 NORTH STREET TO LOUISE SMITH

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land
Bank (“Land Bank™) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real
property of the Land Bank, subject to approval of the Vacant Property Review Committee and
resolution by Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of

Section 16-707; and

WHEREAS, the Vacant Property Review Committee reviewed the proposed transfer of
1106 North Street (the "Property") at its public meeting held on June 12, 2018 and Philadelphia
City Council approved conveyance of the Property by Resolution No. 180662, adopted on June

21, 2018.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the
Land Bank to convey the Property; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The conveyance of the - Property to Louise Smith for «Consideration_Verbal»
($«Consideration_Numericy) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved,;

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all terms and conditions of Section 16-707 of
the Philadelphia Code;

3. The Executive Director, Director of Property Management, and Senior Counse] are each
hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute,
deliver, and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents as may be
necessary or desirable to consummate the conveyance of the Property, which shall contain
such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem
necessary or appropriate, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall
constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank; and

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel méy modify this Resolution as
may be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 13 of 41



EXHIBIT C

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 33
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF
2022 KIMBALL STREET TO V2 PROPERTIES LLC

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land
Bank (“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real
property of the Land Bank, subject to approval of the Vacant Property Review Committee and
resolution by Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of

Section 16-707; and

WHEREAS, the Vacant Property Review Committee reviewed the proposed transfer of
2022 Kimball Street (the "Property") at its public meeting held on April 10, 2018 and
Philadelphia City Council approved conveyance of the Property by Resolution No. 180468
adopted on May 17, 2018. '

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the
Land Bank to convey the Property; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

6. The conveyance of the Property to V2 Properties LLC for One Hundred Seventy Five
Thousand Dollars ($175,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby

approved;

7. The conveyance of the Property complies with all terms and conditions of Section 16-707 of
the Philadelphia Code;

8. The Executive Director, Director of Property Management, and Senior Counsel are each
hereby authorized, in the name -of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute,
deliver, and perform any and all -agreements, deeds, and other doecuments as may be
necessary or desirable to consummate the conveyance of the Property, which shall contain
such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem
necessary or appropriate, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall
constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank; and

9. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as
may be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

10. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 14 of 41



EXHIBIT D

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 34
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF
2145,2147, AND 2149 N. 15TH STREET TO COMMUNITY VENTURES

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land
Bank (“Land Bank™) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real
property of the Land Bank, subject to approval of the Vacant Property Review Committee and
resolution by Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of

Section 16-707; and

WHEREAS, the Vacant Property Review Committee reviewed the proposed transfer of
2145, 2147, and 2149 N. 15th Street (collectively, the "Property") at its public meeting held on
June 12, 2018 and Philadelphia City Council approved conveyance of the Property by Resolution
No. 180614, adopted on June 21, 2018.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the
Land Bank to convey the Property; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

11. The conveyance of the Property to Community Ventures for Three Dollars ($3.00) is in the
best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved,;

12. The conveyance of the Property complies with all terms and conditions of Section 16-707 of
the Philadelphia Code;

13. The Executive Director, Director of Property Management, and Senior Counsel are each
hereby authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute,
deliver, and perform any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents as may be
necessary or desirable to consummate the conveyance of the Property, which shall contain
such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem
necessary or appropriate, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall
constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank; and

14. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as
may be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

15. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 15 of 41



EXHIBIT E

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 35
RESOLUTION APPROVING PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK
OPERATING BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2019

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Board") was
presented with the proposed budget for the fiscal year ending 2019 (attached to this Resolution),
which itemizes the categories and amounts of expenses required to fund operations of the
Philadelphia Land Bank (2019 Operating Budget”); and

WHEREAS, section 309 of the Bylaws of the Philadelphia Land Bank ("Bylaws")
requires that adoption or amendment of the annual budget be approved by a majority of the
"entire Board of Directors" (defined in section 101 of the Bylaws as the total number of
Directors that the Land Bank would have if there were no vacancies); and

WHEREAS, the Board deems it necessary and in the best interest of the Land Bank to
approve and adopt the 2019 Operating Budget, subject to the terms of this Resolution.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The 2019 Operating Budget, as presented to the Board and attached to this Resolution, is
hereby approved and adopted by a majority of the “entire Board of Directors".

2. The Land Bank staff will provide the Board with quarterly financial reporting comparing
actual expenditures to the fiscal year end 2019 budgeted expenses.

3. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as
may be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 16 of 41



PHILADELISHIA LAND SANK ORAFY FIBCAL 2019 OPERATING BULGET @ 68107118

JULY 1, 2018 YO JUNE 30, 2019
SALARIES — 1ATLI06 15;
Shars of BHCD Suppors Salaries 224300 A
Share of PMOC Admin Salaries gy g
Eringe Sennfits
FA W00
Parmons AL
Huaith Birafits
Majns Modical 150606 3
Pmasurption Plan 64,000 14
Dantal 11 5
mion L
Lo insuance L8005
Group Lugal 2500
Viamer's Compensation 15 %50
unemgicmest Comp X o]
Yotat Fringes ) 456 16C
TOTAL LAND: BANK SALARIES & FRINGES - 305,160 |
Burchaas of Seryices
Teolephone . 875
Temeung. Tsavei & Contarences 000
Pamm Gas & Mileuge 8500
500
‘W 6000
ioqw #m 150,000 16}
frutsh and Acrnuntng Congulting A5 100
Poyodl & Ruanyt System 4400
Buetagic P FEONG &
P $ Propeny Mantsnante GG
Retst of OHew Souce 41 580
INSIHANCSY ey (5
1nsurance brorss 1666 25900 %
Totai Prrchase of Services 503,818
Materists & Supoiies
Bavks, Supristions, Duss LEV¢ gl
U Migherist & Suppiss & 005
Frting G100
Tots! Materials & Supplies 36400
205
5000 19
5 TG,
m’aw Jmc‘og( mp-'ovemm At o]
Soitwiare ountes 545,200
Purchipse of dae rervoes 550G
Furatrase ang magsesnance of eqidoment 4450
28250
ez Eatute
N,wm £ Dmposifon
City % 3RO Lien Payments 2582006 i1
Sterd! Sal Frovetsng Fves S48 780 {149
Apprame’s 75400
By WO 114
Py Fapt G526 1%
sm Watws Managenant 378720
e Property Masiensace . . LLSU0D00 (14)
4123

Totat Costs All Categories _' L m W

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 17 of 41



PHILAGELPHIA LAND BANK

FISCAL 2018 OPERATING BUDGET

JULY 1, 2018 TG JUNE 30, 2019

22016

Bevenue

VPRE 2019 Net srooeets $ 1396 84C i}

PUB FY 2618 Sirect Sales $ 1387200 i

General Fung Reques! $ 4 16E 149 %)
8,830,

Ansumpdions

fi; Procten Net WPRC sales through 08/30/2019 - increased by $100,000 inatied budgs:
difference of $5E,840 against VPRC saies 16 2aiance)

{81 Projected PLB sates fhrough 06/30/2019 - increased by $467 200

fHie} Ganarat fund allocation request submted

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 18 of 41



EXHIBIT F

_ RESOLUTION NO. 2018 —- 36
RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORIZATION TO ACQUIRE PROPERTIES AT
JUDICIAL SALE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN TERMS AND CONDITIONS

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. §§ 2101, ef seq.,.("Land
Bank Act") authorizes a land bank to acquire property exposed for sale under the Municipal
Claim and Tax Lien Law, 53 P.S. §§ 7101, et seq.;

WHEREAS, section 16-705(2) of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia
Land Bank (“Land Bank”) to acquire real property or interests in real property through all legal
means, subject to certain stated terms and conditions;

WHEREAS, section 16-705(3)(b) of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Land Bank to
acquire tax delinquent properties at judicial sales conducted by, or on behalf of, the City of
Philadelphia ("Judicial Sale Properties");

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Board") finds
the acquisition of Judicial Sale Properties can be better managed by delegating the authority to
bid for and acquire Judicial Sale Properties pursuant to the terms of this Resolution.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

7. The Board Chair, Board Vice-Chair, and Executive Director are each herby individually
authorized to bid for and acquire Judicial Sale Properties on behalf of the Land Bank in
accordance with this Resolution, the Land Bank Act, the Philadelphia Code, and any
Memorandums of Understanding to which the Land Bank is a party.

8. The maximum expenditure for acquisition of Judicial Sale Properties authorized by this
Resolution is One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000.00) without further
approval or authorization from the Board (the "Spending Limit").

9. The Board Chair, Board Vice-Chair, and Executive Director are each hereby individually
further authorized to designate any Judicial Sale Properties as approved for acquisition in
connection with the acquisition of Judicial Sale Properties pursuant to this Resolution.

10. The authority granted in this Resolution is in addition to any other authority to acquire
Judicial Sale Properties granted in any other resolution. This Resolution shall not affect, or
be deemed to reduce, any authority or amounts to acquire Judicial Sale Properties which the
Board has granted or authorized in any other resolution.

11. For all Judicial Sale Properties acquired-under this Resolution, the Executive Director shall

report at each Regular Meeting of the Board on a cumulative basis: (a) the property address;
(b) the amount paid; and (c) the proposed disposition use of the property. Land Bank staff

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 19 of 41



shall provide such other information to allow the Board to properly supervise and control this
delegation of authority.

12. Those Land Bank staff authorized to execute and deliver documents on behalf of the Land
Bank under Resolution 2017-43 are hereby authorized to execute and deliver any and all
applications, contracts, and other documentation necessary or desirable to carry out the
purposes and intents of this Resolution.

13. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as
may be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

14. The authorization provided in this Resolution shall expire on September 30, 2018 unless
extended by further action by the Board.

15. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 20 of 41



EXHIBIT G

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 37 _
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A THIRD AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY AND PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("Redevelopment Authority") and
the Philadelphia Land Bank entered into a Memorandum of Understanding, effective as of October 3,
2014 (“Original Memorandum of Understanding”), through which the Redevelopment Authority
agreed to: (i) provide staffing and funding support to the Land Bank; (ii) provide for the transfer of
title to certain properties owned by the Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank; and (iii) arrange
for transfer of management and maintenance of certain software operational systems then controlled
by the Redevelopment Authority; among other things.

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2015 the parties entered into an Amended and Restated
Memorandum of Understanding (“Amended and Restated MOU™) which extended the agreements
and conditions of the Original Memorandum of Understanding through Fiscal Year 2016;

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2016, the parties entered into a First Amendment to the Amended
and Restated Memorandum of Understanding which extended the agreements and conditions of the
Amended and Restated MOU through Fiscal Year 2017, among other things;

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2017, the parties entered into a Second Amendment to the Amended
and Restated Memorandum of Understanding which extended the agreements and conditions of the
Amended and Restated MOU through Fiscal Year 2018, among other things;

WHEREAS, the parties now desire to renew, extend, and modify certain provisions of the
Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding, as amended, pursuant to a Third
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding (“Third Amendment”),
as more specifically provided in the summary of major terms (“Summary™) attached to this

Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Board") has
considered the Third Amendment and finds that its adoption is in the best interests of the Land Bank.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphié
Land Bank that:

1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized to enter into the Third Amendment with the
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority in form and substance acceptable to the Executive
Director and Senior Counsel consistent with the Summary.

2. All actions previously taken prior to the date hereof by the Executive Director with respect to or

in connection with the Third Amendment are hereby approved, ratified and affirmed.
3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 21 of 41



Philadelphia Land Bank / PRA

Memorandum of Understanding (as amended)

Summary of Major Terms

Paragraph 1 - Transfer or
Assignment of PRA staff to
Land Bank

Pursuant to the Third Amendment, as of June 30, 2018, there are

no PRA employees assigned or transferred to, or performing any
work for, the Land Bank. Accordingly, paragraph 1 of the Amended
and Restated Memorandum, as amended, will be deleted.

Paragraph 2 - PRA Funding
of Land Bank Operations

The provisions of Paragraph 2 have either been fulfilled or were
deleted by previous amendments.

Paragraph 3 - Transfer of
PRA Surplus Property

No changes to Paragraph 3, which provides that PRA will convey to
the Land Bank certain surplus properties. Upon Council approval,
PRA will convey those surplus properties to the Land Bank for
nominal consideration.

Paragraph 4 - Management
of the “Front Door”
Program

No changes to Paragraph 4, which provides that the Land Bank
receives EQOls, among other things, for all available City, PRA and
Land Bank properties.

Paragraph 5 — Equipment

Pursuant to the Third Amendment, the only computer hardware

being used by the Land Bank is a single desktop computer.

Otherwise, no changes to Paragraph 5 regarding Land Bank's use of
PRA computer hardware.

Paragraph 6 —-Term

Pursuant to the Third Amendment, the term is being extended for
an additional year - 7/1/2018 to 6/30/2019.

Paragraph 7 -
Miscellaneous

No changes to Paragraph 7, which provides, among other things,
that the Land Bank will (1) cooperate with PRA to acquire property
using the City's foreclosure process; and (2) support PRA’s use of
LAMA.

Third Amendment - VPRC
Sales Proceeds

Pursuant to the Third Amendment, all proceeds from the sale of
City properties through VPRC will continue to be property of the
Land Bank and will be deposited directly into the Land Bank's bank
account following settlement. Proceeds will no longer be
deposited with PRA and later transferred to the Land Bank. Any
recording or other fees will be paid by the Land Bank from such
proceeds.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018

Page 22 of 41




Third Amendment — Rent
and Copier Reimbursement

Pursuant to the Third Amendment, from 7/1/2017 to 6/30/2018,

the Land Bank reimbursed PRA for use of a portion of the premises
in the amount of $38,228.99. For 7/1/2018 to 6/30/2019, the Land
Bank will reimburse PRA its pro rata share for office rent based on
space used.

Pursuant to the Third Amendment, from 7/1/2018 to 6/30/2019,
the Land Bank will reimburse the amount of $98.01/month for a
Minolta copier.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 23 of 41




EXHIBIT H

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 38
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT BETWEEN PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK AND
INTERFACE STUDIO LLC FOR 2019 STRATEGIC PLAN

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (the "Board") deems
it necessary and in the best interest of the Land Bank to enter into a Professional Services
Agreement between the Philadelphia Land Bank and Interface Studios LLC for preparation of
the 2019 Strategic Plan, among other things (the "Agreement"). The scope of services and
compensation exhibits expected to be attached to the Agreement are attached to this Resolution

("Exhibits").

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

16. The Executive Director is further authorized to enter into and sign the Agreement on behalf
of the Land Bank, in form and substance acceptable to the Executive Director and Senior
Counsel, and substantially consistent with the Exhibits.

17. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as
may be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

18. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 24 of 41



SCOPE OF SERVICES

Section 1 — Schedule

A.

The Provider will adhere to the following schedule, except that the Land Bank may lengthen,
but not shorten, the date for completion of any item in the schedule below, in its sole and

absolute discretion.

Kick-off Meeting No later than July 23, 2018

First Round of Outreach Meetings Early-August 2018, but to be completed
no later than August 17, 2018

First Strategic Plan Draft Completed September 14, 2018

Preliminary Strategic Plan Published for Public October 12, 2018

Comment

Second Round of Outreach Meetings Mid/late October, 2018, but to be
completed no later than October 19,
2018.

Second Strategic Plan Draft Completed October 26, 2018

Land Bank Public Hearing " | No later than November 2, 2018

Final Strategic Plan Provided November 9, 2018

Final Strategic Plan Adopted by Land Bank Board November 15, 2018

Final Strategic Plan Introduced to City Council November 29, 2018

Final Strategic Plan Adopted by City Council December 6, 2018

Section 2 — Kick-off Meeting

A.

The Provider will organize a kick-off meeting consisting of representatives of the Provider,
RES, the Land Bank, and PCPC.

At least five (5) days before the kick-off meeting, the Provider will provide the Land Bank
with a proposed, detailed work plan, which shall include meeting dates, deadlines, schedules,
and project milestones for preparation of the Strategic Plan, as defined below, and
performance of the Services (the "Work Plan"). The Work Plan will adhere to the schedule

in Section 1 of this Exhibit.

At the kick-off meeting, the Land Bank and the Provider will discuss (i) revisions to the
Work Plan as may be provided by the Land Bank; (ii) data collection requests and
procedures; and (iii) anticipated challenges affecting preparation of the Strategic Plan and
performance of the Services and proposed resolutions to such challenges.

No later than one (1) week after the kick-off meeting, the Provider will submit a revised
Work Plan incorporating all revisions requested by the Land Bank. The Land Bank may
provide further revisions, which the Provider will incorporate into the next draft of the Work
Plan. The Work Plan will not be considered final until the Land Bank has approved it, in its

sole discretion.

Once approved by the Land Bank in writing, the Work Plan will serve as a guide for
preparation of the Strategic Plan and performance of the Services. The Work Plan shall not,
nor be deemed to, supersede any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this Agreement.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 25 of 41



Section 3 — Understanding L.and Bank Operations

A. The Provider will gain a clear understanding of the Land Bank’s processes, operations, and

activities including
(i) reviewing appropriate materials (e.g., PA Land Bank Act, Philadelphia Land Bank
Ordinance, past strategic plans, and policies);
(ii) meeting with Land Bank staff to understand the multiple steps required for, constraints
associated with, and the time and resources involved in acquisitions and dispositions;
(iii) the annual level of activity for the past several years;
(iv) the demand for various end uses of Land Bank properties;
(v) the Land Bank's staffing resources; and
(vi) the Land Bank's operational and budgetary constraints.

Prior to the first round of Outreach Meetings, the Provider will provide an assessment, with
diagrams, of the Land Bank's operational and budgetary constraints affecting the pace of
transactions as well as the Land Bank's potential growth capacity as well as an assessment of
the strengths and shortcomings of the two prior strategic plans. This assessment and
associated diagrams may be used for the Outreach Meetings, defined below, to help align
public expectations with Land Bank operations and may be, at the Land Bank's request,
incorporated into the Strategic Plan.

Section 4 — Status Meetings, and Questions

A.

The Provider will report to the Land Bank on a weekly basis, or such other basis as
determined by the Land Bank, from time to time, in the Land Bank's sole discretion, (each

"Status Report").

Each Status Report will consist of the status of the Strategic Plan, the Provider's progress
with providing the Services, any delays or potential delays of any task or item in the Work
Plan; a discussion of all methodologies, analysis, approaches, data, plans, typologies, models,
maps, tables, strategies, recommendations, and other information being utilized in
preparation of the Strategic Plan and providing the Services; and any other topic the Land

Bank may want to discuss.

The Provider will provide the Status Report by phone or in-person as determined by the Land
Bank, from time to time, in its sole discretion.

The Provider will be available for questions during business hours (Monday — Friday,
9:00am to 5:00pm EST) and shall provide answers to all questions as soon as possible.

Section 5 — Collaboration and Data

A.

The Provider is expected to work closely with and participate in regular meetings with the
Land Bank and the Philadelphia City Planning Commission ("PCPC™").

The Provider will secure, at its sole cost and expense, access to, and permission to use, all
plans, studies, data, and other information needed to prepare the Strategic Plan and perform

the Services.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 26 of 41



C. In addition to any other plans, studies, data, and information, the Provider will also utilize the
following to prepare the Strategic Plan and perform the Services

@A) current Land Bank holdings;

(ii)  Land Bank disposition and acquisition activity, costs, and timelines;

(iii) Land Bank maintenance activity and costs;

(iv)  Land Bank properties eligible for tax sale acquisition (vacant land and buildings, tax
delinquent property - with assessed values and tax lien totals), and public ownership
properties flagged for Land Bank acquisition but not yet acquired;

(v)  side/rear yard eligible properties, i.e., publicly owned and privately owned tax
delinquent properties;

(vi)  gentrification indicators;

(vii) OPA sales data;

(viii) most recent Market Value Analysis by TRF;

(ix)  property tax abatements;

(x)  building permits sorted by type;

(xi)  properties sold at Sheriff’s sale;

(xii)  known future land uses;

(xiii) major developments;

(xiv) City housing investments since formation of Land Bank;

(xv) other City/PIDC/Housing Authority investments;

(xvi) incentive zones;

(xvii) updated information on affordable housing inventory;

(xviii) PolicyMap;

(xix) ESRI/ Census Data;

(xx) Ribbon Demographics’ HISTA tabulations (Households by Income, Size, Tenure and
Age);

(xxi) AMI (area median income) data;

(xxii) market-rate, workforce, low-Income housing tax credit, and deeply subsidized
housing data;

(xxiii) REIS data;

(xxiv) Board of Realtors;

(xxv) Zillow, Trulia, etc; and

(xxvi) other existing data including streets, transportation, curbs, floodplains, land use,
zoning, census, and geography.

D. The Provider will use good faith efforts to utilize, and obtain permission to use, all plans,
studies, data, maps, tables, and other information the City or any other governmental or
quasi-governmental entity may have in order to limit the amount of work needed to prepare
the Strategic Plan and perform the Services.

Section 6 —Strategic Plan Elements
The Provider shall prepare the Land Bank's 2019 Strategic Plan (the "Strategic Plan"), which
shall consist of the following elements: (A) Introduction, (B) Analysis of Market Conditions, (C)

Inventory and Mapping Analysis to Create Vacancy Typologies, and (D) Annual

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 27 of 41



Recommendations for Acquisition, Maintenance, Disposition, and Reuse; and (E)
Disposition/Acquisition Policies. A more detailed description of these elements follows.

A. Introduction

The Provider will prepare an introduction for the Strategic Plan to include the following:

e An executive summary of the Strategic Plan.

e A general description of the Land Bank's, City’s, and City Agencies' publicly owned
properties — total number of lots/properties and map of properties, grouped in City Planning
Districts, Council districts, census tracts, or other geographic units as requested by the Land
Bank.

» A detailed description of the processes and methodologies used to complete the mapping,
analysis, and recommendations for acquisition, disposition and re-use including a description
and a full list of all datasets used in the analysis. It will also describe how typologies were
created and how annual acquisition, maintenance, disposition, and re-use figures were
determined.

B. Analysis of Market Conditions

Pursuant to 16-709(3)(a) of the Philadelphia Code, the Provider will provide an analysis, in form
and substance approved by the Land Bank, to determine market conditions and trends in
neighborhoods where the Land Bank holds or is likely to hold property according to census tract
or grouping of census tracts as determined by the Land Bank to have similar characteristics.

This analysis shall specifically evaluate the relative need and availability for affordable or
mixed-income housing including, without limitation, such housing that is accessible or visitable;
economic development that creates jobs for community residents; community facilities that
provide needed services to residents; side and rear yards; food-producing urban agriculture;
community open space; and any additional core beneficial land uses that may be identified by the

Land Bank.

The Provider will engage in a collaborative, data-driven process, to leverage and align the City’s
affordable housing and other plans including, without limitation, the City's Assessment of Fair
Housing, the City's Housing Action Plan, the City's Urban Agriculture Strategic Plan, PCPC's
Citywide Vision, the Philadelphia 2035 Plan and, where available, district plans, and any other
plans, studies, data, or information requested by the Land Bank (which may include the
Neighborhood Gardens Trust Priority Acquisition Plan, Philadelphia Greenworks, PWD
initiatives, privately funded community plans, DVRPC plans, major development plans, and
institutional master plans).

The Provider will utilize the most recent Market Value Analysis ("MVA") available for the City
as well as the most recent data regarding

(i) residential sales volume and prices;

(ii)  rentlevels;

(iii)  availability of affordable housing;

(iv)  existing residential vacancy levels;

(v)  population/household growth;

(vi)  household income and age;

(vii) abatement applications;

(viii) building permits/new private development;

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 28 of 41



(ix)  public sector investments;
(x)  household and employment growth projections; and
(xi)  any other plans, studies, data, or information as requested by the Land Bank.

The Provider will also provide an analysis of market conditions and trends (including economic,
demographic, and any other market conditions requested by the Land Bank), in form and
substance approved by the Land Bank, for
(i) each Councilmanic District to ascertain if acquisition and disposition goals for each
Councilmanic District reflect the characteristics of each specific Councilmanic
District;
(ii)  each census tract and groups of census tracts in the City;
(iii)  each City planning district; and
(iv)  any other geographical area requested by the Land Bank.

C. Inventory and Mapping Analysis to Create Vacancy Typologies

Pursuant to 16-709(3)(b) of the Philadelphia Code, the Provider will generate an inventory and
mapping of vacant properties in each census tract or grouping of census tracts, including
properties that are owned by the Land Bank and properties that are privately owned and
delinquent as to municipal taxes or claim.

The Provider will also generate a series of maps, tables, and aggregated data, in form and
substance approved by the Land Bank, of (i) the City’s vacant property inventory, including all
vacant properties owned by the Land Bank, Department of Public Property, Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority, Philadelphia Housing and Development Corporation, and
Philadelphia Housing Authority (collectively, the "City Agencies"); and (ii) properties that are
privately owned and delinquent as to municipal taxes or claims in each census tract, grouping of
census tracts, Councilmanic District, City planning district, and any other geographical aréa
requested by the Land Bank. The Provider will complement these maps, tables, and aggregated
data with information regarding whether the property is vacant land or a vacant building, the size
of the property, adjacencies to other vacant property or proximity to clusters of vacancy, base

land use, and zoning.

The Provider will develop “vacancy typologies™ that considers market conditions, the existing
inventory, potential acquisitions, and other information so that these typologies can provide a
basis for both qualitative and numerical recommendations regarding acquisition, maintenance,

and disposition.

The Provider will use these typologies to cluster similar block groups or census tracts into larger
‘areas for analytical purposes to describe the properties based on vacancy type, parcel size,
adjacencies, clustering, tax delinquency, and market condition, presence of recent City-supported
housing and community development projects and programs, district plan recommendations,
greenworks-related investments, stormwater management designs, and the inventory of vacant
property, both public and private. These typologies are an important element of the Strategic
Plan, and the Provider will use their expertise and judgment to develop them, working closely
with the Land Bank and PCPC staff.

The Provider will consider the following to determine vacant typologies:

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 29 of 41



Past City-supported housing and community development projects and programs
Philadelphia 2035 District Plan recommendations

Philadelphia Greenworks

Philadelphia Water Department’s Stormwater Management Plan

Philadelphia's vacant and surplus property inventory

Privately-owned tax-delinquent properties

Philadelphia's Assessment of Fair Housing,

Philadelphia 's Housing Action Plan

Philadelphia's Urban Agriculture Strategic Plan

PCPC's Citywide Vision

Any other plans, studies, data, or information as requested by the Land Bank (which may
include the Neighborhood Gardens Trust Priority Acquisition Plan, Philadelphia
Greenworks, PWD initiatives, privately funded community plans, DVRPC plans, major

development plans, and institutional master plans).

D. Annual Recommendations for Acquisitions, Maintenance, Disposition, and Reuse,

Once the market analysis is completed and vacancy typologies determined, the Provider,
working with Land Bank and PCPC staff, will propose defined annual targets for Acquisitions,
Maintenance, Disposition, and Reuse.

Pursuant to 16-709(3)(c) of the Philadelphia Code, the Provider will propose annual goals for a
five-year period for acquisition, maintenance, and conveyance of properties that support the
City's Comprehensive Plan and the goals of community plans accepted by PCPC, and which
encourage equitable redevelopment, and the goals of any other plans as requested by the Land
Bank. This shall include items such as proposed targets for the share of future housing units to
be built on public properties affordable to different income ranges of very low-, low-, and
moderate-income households, as well as economic development/job creation projects, urban
agriculture, open space, and additional core beneficial land use needs identified pursuant to
Section 6.B above. These goals shall be based on the analysis of each census tract or grouping of
census tracts that were identified pursuant to Section6. B above, taking into account the existing
inventory of the Land Bank as well as the universe of vacant and tax delinquent or City-liened
properties, and demand for land based on requests received in the previous year. The Provider
may also consider the anticipated availability of funding, and the feasibility of inclusionary
housing requirements if applicable.

e Acquisition — In the context of the market analysis, vacancy typology, and re-use
recommendations, the Provider will update the decision-making methodology for identifying
properties to be acquired for re-use, and, pursuant to 16-709(3)(f) of the Philadelphia Code,
propose defined annual goals for acquisitions, and suggest the geographic areas in which the
Land Bank will acquire such property and for what purpose. The proposed decision-making
methodology will consider the existing Strategic Plan, existing District and Neighborhood
Plans, Land Bank operational constraints and budgetary limitations, the Outreach Meetings,
meetings with represéntatives of City Council and other City entities, and any other plans,
studies, data, or information requested by the Land Bank.

e Maintenance — The Provider will estimate the number of lots and structures the Land Bank is
likely to own - through assemblage of publicly owned parcels and acquisition of privately
Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 30 of 41



owned, tax delinquent vacant parcels - and the number of privately owned vacant lots that are
adjacent to the lots owned by the Land Bank. The Provider will also consider the potential
for redevelopment and reuse and the Land Bank's hold strategy to assess the level of
maintenance necessary to ensure that Land Bank owned properties do not remain blighted.
The Provider will use existing Land Bank data on maintenance cycles and costs to develop a
feasible strategy and estimate of costs for maintenance of lots and structures the Land Bank
owns or is likely to own, and those lots and structures which are privately owned, but located

adjacent to Land Bank owned property.

e Disposition and Reuse — The Provider will identify at least three primary re-use categories:
Open Space, Residential, and Commercial, along with specific types of re-use as appropriate
and feasible.

Open Space should include a range of possible uses including, without limitation,
side and rear yards, recreation uses, community gardens, and urban agriculture.

Residential should include affordable housing, workforce housing, and market-
rate housing for both rental and homeownership.

Commercial should include neighborhood commercial/retail, mixed-use,
institutional, and large-scale commercial/retail.

Each re-use category will be examined in the context of the vacancy typologies, including the
number of vacant properties potentially available, the needs and available resources for those re-
uses, and the consistency of those re-uses with existing adopted District Plans and other adopted

or accepted plans where applicable.

For each re-use category, the Provider will provide:

» A description of the resources required for each re-use and an assessment of the availability
of those resources (e.g., financing availability).

» Maps of the census tracts, grouping of census tracts, and other geographical area (e.g.,
Councilmanic District, neighborhood, or City planning district) as requested by the Land
Bank showing where vacancy typologies suitable for each re-use occurs, where the type of
vacancy and context supports the re-use, and showing the number of vacant properties in
those typologies, and the proximity of vacant properties owned by the Land Bank, the City,
the City Agencies, and privately owned, tax delinquent vacant properties.

» A discussion of consistency with District Plans and other plans where applicable.

» Proposed, defined annual goals of how many properties can be disposed for each re-use
given the availability of resources required (16-709(3)(e) of the Philadelphia Code).

» Tables that summarize the number of properties - by geographical area as requested by the
Land Bank (e.g., census tracts, grouping of census tracts, Councilmanic District,
neighborhood, or City planning district) - suited for each re-use and the total number of
properties targeted for disposition by re-use.

» A map of priority properties for disposition and re-use based on the market analysis and

vacancy typologies.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 31 of 41



Pursuant to 16-709(3)(d) of the Philadelphia Code, the Provider will provide recommendations
for uses of properties in each census tracts or grouping of census tracts that advances the Land

Bank's goals.

The Land Bank may request that these recommendations be also provided by Councilmanic
District, neighborhoods, or City planning districts. Such recommendations must take into
account the capacity and resources required and available for residential and commercial
development, and for stewarding land as open space.

Summary of Five-Year Goals and Targets — The Provider will develop a summary of five-year
goals and quantitative targets for acquisition and disposition and re-use. These goals and targets
will be in form and substance as approved by the Land Bank (e.g., residential re-use goals and
targets may be arranged by affordable to different household income ranges such as very-low,
low, and moderate-income) and arranged by census tract, grouping of census tracts, or other
geographical area (e.g., Councilmanic District or City planning district) as requested by the Land

Bank. :

E. Disposition/Acquisition Policies

The Provider will assist the Land Bank in identifying strengths and weaknesses of the current
Disposition / Acquisition policies in light of the findings of the Strategic Plan and assist in
drafting new Disposition / Acquisition policies to be attached to the Strategic Plan and presented
for adoption by the Land Bank, certain other City Agencies, and City Council.

Section 7 — Community Qutreach Meetings

A. The Provider will plan and conduct several community outreach meetings with residents,
community groups, non-profit organizations, and other stakeholders (collectively, "Qutreach
Meetings") on a schedule developed in collaboration with the Land Bank.

B. Prior to the Outreach Meetings, the Provider will (i) advise the Land Bank on how to
effectively and efficiently execute an outreach strategy so as to obtain robust engagement
with residents, community groups, non-profit organizations, and other stakeholders; and (ii)
propose a series of working sessions with key stakeholders in order to refine the outreach

strategy.

C. Outreach Meetings may take place outside of regular business hours in the evenings and on
weekends. The Outreach Meetings will be conducted in two rounds pursuant to the schedule
set forth in Section 1 of this Exhibit, with both rounds involving all of the identified

stakeholders.

D. The purpose of the Outreach Meetings is (i) to obtain input on the Strategic Plan from
residents, community groups, non-profit organizations, and other stakeholders and (ii) to
inform the public about real estate development, financing, and ways to obtain property from
the Land Bank. In coordination with the Land Bank, the Provider will develop presentation
materials and any other materials, as requested by the Land Bank. for the Outreach Meetings.

E. The Provider will also advise the Land Bank on how to best obtain input from representatives
of City Council and other City entities and will plan and conduct meetings with

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 32 of 41



representatives of City Council and other City entities to obtain their input on the Strategic
Plan. In coordination with the Land Bank, the Provider will develop presentation materials
and any other materials, as requested by the Land Bank, for meetings with representatives of

City Council and other City entities.

The Provider will also advise the Land Bank on how to leverage and incorporate the input
from the Outreach Meetings and meetings with representatives of City Council and other

City entities into the Strategic Plan.

Section 8 — Public Hearings

A.

The Provider will assist the Land Bank with planning and conducting a public hearing prior
to the adoption of the Strategic Plan. In coordination with the Land Bank, the Provider will
develop presentation materials and any other materials, as requested by the Land Bank, for
the public hearing including a summary presentation, display boards, and a summary handout
to accompany the second Strategic Plan draft.

The Provider will have representatives present at the public hearing to accept public
comment and answer questions.

Section 9 — Deliverables
A. No later than three (3) days following completion of the final Strategic Plan, the Provider

will provide, at no cost or expense to the Land Bank,
@) paper copies of the Strateglc Plan as requested by the Land Bank, but not to exceed
one hundred (100) copies, in a form suitable for distribution;

(i)  adigital and print-ready version of the Strategic Plan in a digital or electronic format

as requested by the Land Bank;

(iii)  all materials prepared in connection with, directly or indirectly, the Outreach
Meetings and meetings with representatives of City Council and other City entities in
a digital or electronic format as requested by the Land Bank; and

(iv)  all Instruments of Service, maps, tables, datasets, analytical models, metadata,
methodologies, and all other work products developed, built, or added in connection
with, directly or indirectly, the Strategic Plan or the Services in a dlgltal or electronic
format as requested by the Land Bank.

All deliverables pursuant to this Section 9 will be in a form suitable for electronic and print
production and distribution

The Provider will work with a printer of the Land Bank’s choosing for printing the Strategic
Plan.

No later than November 15, 2018, the Provider will prepare and submit a detailed document
that describes the process and methodology for developing the Strategic Plan including
suggestions to improve and refine the Strategic Plan process for future years.

The Provider will provide various iterations of the Strategic Plan and other materials as
requested by the Land Bank and will make any and all revisions to the Strategic Plan and
other materials, and all versions thereof, as requested by the Land Bank in order to produce a

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 33 of 41



final Strategic Plan and other materials. The Land Bank reserves the right to provide
feedback on all iterations of the Strategic Plan and other materials until they are satisfactory
to the Land Bank, in form and substance.

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 34 of 41



COMPENSATION AND SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES

Compensation
The Compensation includes all costs, sums, amounts, and expenses that will be charged for

the Services and all costs, sums, amounts, and expenses which the Provider may be liable for

in connection with performing the Services. Unless expressly approved in writing, except for
the Compensation, the Land Bank will not be responsible for any compensation, costs, sums,

amounts, or expenses under this Agreement or otherwise.

The Compensation will be paid according to the following schedule:

. Amount
Within three (3) days following completion
of the First Round of Outreach Meetings $12,000
Within three (3) days following completion
of the First Strategic Plan Draft $25,000

Within three (3) days following completion
of all outstanding Services and adoption of
the Strategic Plan by the Land Bank Board of | $38,000
Directors

Total Compensation $75,000

Supplemental Services

If the Land Bank requests any supplemental services not included in the Services
(collectively, "Supplemental Services"), the Provider shall provide the Land Bank with
written notice that such items are Supplemental Services no later than three (3) days after the
Land Bank's request. If the Provider commences with providing the Supplemental Services
prior to providing such notice, then the Land Bank shall not be responsible to compensate the
Provider, or any of its contractors or subcontractors, or be responsible for any costs, sums,
amounts, or expenses, in connection with such Supplemental Services.

If the Provider does provide such notice prior to commencing with the Supplemental
Services, then the Land Bank may, in its sole discretion, proceed with the Supplemental
Services, subject to the hourly rates provided below, or not proceed with the Supplemental

Services.

Scott Page - $140/hour Mindy Watts - $120/hour
Ashley DiCaro - $100/hour Christopher DiStasi - $85/hour
Ben Bryant - $110/hour Stacey Chen - $110/hour

Jamie Granger - $100/hour Yoona Ahn - $85/hour
Maria Gonzalez - $85/hour Lisa Lobree - $40/hour
Margaret B. Sowell - $200/hour Elizabeth M. Beckett - $160/hour

James Hamilton - $80/hour

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 35 of 41



EXHIBIT I

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -39
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO
UTILIZE REPUBLIC BANK, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN TERMS AND CONDITIONS

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation ("PHDC") and the
Philadelphia Land Bank ("Land Bank") entered into a Management Contract dated July 17, 2015 as
amended by a First Amendment to Management Contract dated May 27, 2016 (collectively,
"Management Agreement");

WHEREAS, under section 1.A.(3) and 1.A.(4) of the Management Agreement, PHDC is
tasked with managing, overseeing, and operating the everyday activities of the Land Bank and has all
requisite duties and exclusive authority to act on behalf, and for the benefit, of the Land Bank to
organize the financial and other activities of the Land Bank as necessary to efficiently and effectively
conduct the operations of the Land Bank and name and use depositories for the money of the Land

Bank.
WHEREAS, PHDC and the Land Bank currently utilize Citizens Bank.

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2018, PHDC's Board of Directors authorized changing from
Citizens Bank to Republic Bank and PHDC is currently in the process of effecting this change.

WHEREAS, as mentioned above, PHDC is authorized pursuant to the Management
Agreement to organize the financial and other activities of the Land Bank and name and use
depositories for the money of the Land Bank.

WHEREAS, changing from Citizens Bank to Republic Bank, including, without limitation,
opening bank accounts and transferring funds, will require the execution and delivery of certain
certificates, agreements, statements, and documents.

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to provide each Authorized
Person, as defined in this Resolution, with the authority to do and cause to be done any and all acts
and things and to execute and deliver all certificates, agreements, statements, and documents
necessary or appropriate in order to change from Citizens Bank to Republic Bank, including, without
limitation, opening bank accounts and transferring funds.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. Angel Rodriguez, Steve Cusano, and Darren Williams (each an "Authorized Person") is hereby
authorized to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things and to execute and deliver all
certificates, agreements, statements, and documents necessary or appropriate in order to change
from Citizens Bank to Republic Bank, including, without limitation, opening bank accounts and
transferring funds.

2. The authority granted to each Authorized Person pursuant to this Resolution shall automatically
terminate upon such Authorized Person voluntarily or involuntarily leaving their position with

the Land Bank.
Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 36 of 41



6.

The authority delegated in this Resolution shall not be sub-delegated without the approval of the
Board.

Nothing in this Resolution shall, or be deeded to, change, modify, or amend the terms of
Resolution 201745, adopted on October 12, 2017, entitled Resolution Authorizing Certain
Authorized Persons To Sign Orders And Checks For The Payment Of Money By The
Philadelphia Land Bank.

The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may allow modifications to this
Resolution necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

ADOPTED 7/12/2018

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 37 of 41



EXHIBIT J (1 OF 4)

Land Bank Update as of luly 12, 2018
TAX ACQUISITONS Status Report as of 7/42/2018;

FY 2018 .
FY 2018 Budgetad

Actuis#tlons ........... 5$2.550,400.00

foss: Acquisitions t0 Date ... $2572,085.75

Over Budget atand of FYIE  ............ $26,685.79

To date the Land Bank has acquired 289 parcels under the new MO gxecuted i October 2017,
B86.15% of Acquisition Goal for year two of the 2017 Strateglc Plan.

FY 2019

for the First Quarter of 7Y 2015, the Lang Bank expects to acquire $1,500,000 worth of parcels,
Tho dotall is as follows:

Judy 2012 $612,508.22

August 2019 $ 498,205,008

September 2019:  $389 238 78 {Includes sroperty raguested in £Y 2018)

Totst $1.500,000.00

CISPOSITIONS. SEE ATTACHED
£5 of June 30, 2018 The Land Bank hus gone 1o settiemant on 153 uniisflots Tor FY 18 Thisis

46% of the total disposition goal of 325 unds/Tots as outhined i the Strategic ®ian for Year 2.

Currently PLE staff I5 processing 354 lots towards settlerrent. The attached report shows what
stage and intended use, by councit district the lots are.

The {and Pank docs not expect to move to settiement on these properties untd City Council
returis frors recess in Mid-September as per the Disposition Policy.

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS (REP]

Ty
REASSUED: After the cinse of the inithsl posting requests came in the Land Bank and ihe
Caunciimatos Offce. The RFP was re-posted on July , 2048,

5108, 5111, 5113, 5321-5125 Mariet Streat
The Philadelphia Land Bank (*Land Bank") is wollciting proposals from develapers to acquirg 214

davalop all parcels. The Land Bank expects competitive offer prices and invites proposals for the
entire Develaprant Site. There are no rezirictions on the type of development proposed.

ZONNG: OMX-2

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 38 of 41



EXHIBIT J (2 OF 4)

190108 N 33rd Stveet; 1911-2945 N 33rd Street

The Phif2delphia Land Bank {"Land Bank™} is soliciting proposals from developers to scquite and
deveiap some or ait of eight (8] contiguous parcels along the 1900 bilsck of North 33rd Strest,
The land Bark expeets competitive offer pricas and invites proposals for the entie
Bevzloprment Site. There sre no restrictions on the type of develapment proposed,

tpdate: The Land Bank is in discussions with & quaiified developer. We will update the Boaid

as dIsCUSSionSs PIOGIEsT.

EOI SUMMARY
Since the Land Bani’s first summary raport on Dxpressions of interest, the single EOFs have

heen acdressed.

What the Landg Bank is currently Jooking into ks o6 effective way 1o report on the raliing
subimissions of EOis at any gven Lime and provide the Board with an accurale aging report that

wiil show how long the process takes.
We have bacn devaloping 2 splution that can be imglemented with our LAMA database.

FISCAL
‘the staffs have presented a Draft Budget to the Board for review taday, July 12, 2018

¢ The Land Bank has $4,168,000 aliacated for oparations and acquisitions,
s Tneland Benk has instituted a Cast: Flow drawdown procedure thit has been approved
by Revenue and Budget Depurtmeni.
o With the approvai of continued spending awthoiity by this Board the Land Bank
wi continue to acquire properiies through the rext fiscal quarter.

» Baginaing fuly 2018 the Land Bank wili follow the following procedure:

The week befora the scheduled monthly Sherlff Sales {City, GAB, Linebarger] the
Land Bank will subrnit an invoice to the Department of Revenue and Budget
The invoice will consist of 3 cover sheet detalling the total amount for that month's
Eherdt Sale .
o The invoice will be scoompanied by @ detailed spreadsheet identifying
=  The address
OP4 Value
Al City Liens (RF Taxes, Water, PGW. Cther)
Bid Amount
Sheriff Costs
s Final Amount Duc from the Land Bark per the MOU
On 2 quartedy basis the Land Baek will provide Revenue and Budget flinanclal
statements explaining the Land Bank's financiat position

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018 Page 39 of 41



EXHIBIT J (3 OF 4)

Disposition Yype

AN GRS

E 4

-

*

:

Totel Housing/Mixed Vse (UNITS)
{205 30% or hatow of AN

{300} A% 1 SO of A

Cinjelo

{75%) 6% 10 1209 of A

k]

{357 Nor income-Restrivted

{Business Bxpaasions (LOTS)

Joarders/Open space (LOTS)

[ EE RS- REBA-BE-BE-NELEEJ

- B BE-BEEAEREBE-EE-BE-]

SiojelDivIniIvijeoie] w

sivwiojoivniojocioln

- EE-BE-BE-BR-NA-EE-EE-BE-3 N ]

R -EE-BA

sivivioiolbisielol B

olglojuligleE]n

Page 40 of 41

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018



EXHIBIT J (4 OF 4)

RERENS od3fclefofole]eiefnfofalelofofelo
3 = OW?LA olwﬂoﬁoadw—umim_. <« ielele Mﬂn ol
awo L3 BN L o belolofmleials]alo) .wunl..... $ m ,
u ® -
ol (7] _
© L ajefe]o]nlalels sie eloie als)
- bt L SR 1 ; © alnale e &
= 3 m
ol _n“ nﬁﬂmxmuﬁ.. uLn._o_u tal et Y T
oja & BT L BN .R an < Y a.wﬂ o . |
il TERNNNER RN «
wm_n."n. olf elolwin glal Ulmm..vm !r;.xwfa AR j
m, w. i rlefol el
¥ $ - : i .
LSS P (oo a|e:nle ....a,u" | :
. ; o SR =
“.nuu. dfolejain g o ] =1 S FOR P wioiofe - L
3 A .
Gﬂw. = winie P Bx|w o ol{afa i B 29 LB E -
LTS o | Liaialmisiaioim)o|ofoielo) © ] alal oy
s e
m I mm m ”_u.. 3 4 £
8 mwm LI (88 | L s s H w i iR
I e R e gl i LY od
SRBEE W B1E, bRk .J.u.... ’ .& 8 .m,# L g 1 i
5] : LR EEREL R dHERERE EHHE
| i1 TR

Page 41 of 41

Minutes of Regular Meeting of Board of Directors 7/12/2018



10 PHILADELPHIA ~ DEVELOPMENT FACTSHEET (REVISED 8/13/18)
==LAND BANK  1248-525. 23" Street

Name of Applicant(s): Robert Volpe
Legal Entity, if applicable: Lily South 23" Street, LLC
Applicant Mailing Address: 1508 Walnut Street. Suite 1004, Philadelphia, PA 19102
Application Date: Was a Competitive Sale. Applications were due April 9, 2018
Property Addresses: 1248-52 S. 23" Street
Council District & Zoning: Council District 2; RSA-5
Accepted Sale Price*: $361,000 - Determined by: [_] Appraisal [_] LAMA UFP Other: Competitive Sale
*Unless extraneous conditions opply, sale price and accepted price are the same.
STRATEGIC PLAN GOAL Housing (FMV) [] Business Expansion [_]Sideyard [_] Garden/Open Space
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT [X] New Construction (The existing structure will be démolished) [ ] Rehab
PLANNED USE: X Residential [ ] Commercial . [ ] Mixed Use
IF RESIDENTIAL: Single Family -3 single family homes [] Multi-unit
TOTALSQFT : Total development: approximately 6,600 Sq. ft.
CONSTRUCTION COSTS: _ $669,600
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS: $1,144,096

TOTAL PROJECT FUNDING*: $1,147,000 Documentation: [ X] Yes (Cash Accounts and Ldan Commitment) [ _|No

*Applicant must submit Commitment Letter from lender or provide evidence of access to funding prior to Land Bank approval.

Check one: [ | Owner Occupied For Sale to Homebuyer [ ] Rental /Tenant

Project Summary:

Lily South 23™ Street, LLC, a sole-purpose entity wholly owned by the principals of Lily Development, is proposing to
develop 3 single family units to be sold to owner-occupants at market rate. The lot will be subdivided into 3 equally sized
lots of 15 ft. widths and the project will require a zoning variance. An existing vacant unit on the site will be demolished.
The proposed units will be built to 3 stories not to exceed 38 ft., including a finished cellar and roof deck, with 3
bedrooms and 2.5 bathrooms. Construction is projected to begin March 2019. The development team has significant
experience successfully developing projects of similar type and scope, and Lily Development has built more than 250
homes in the greater Philadelphia area over the past 20 years. The developer is compliant with the City of Philadelphia
Revenue Department and has no outstanding tax obligations, conflicts of interest, or unresolved violation of City L&I

codes. The City’s EOP will apply.

Staff Recommendation:
Based on a feasibility review of the project, staff recommends the conveyance of 1248-52 S 23™ Street to Lily South 23"

Street, LLC.

Prepared by: Steve Novotny (Senior Development Specialist)
Reviewed by: Christi Jackson (Director of Real Estate)




Wi PHILADELPHIA ~ DEVELOPMENT FACTSHEET (REVISED 8/13/18)
==LAND BANK  1248-525. 23" Street

1210772017 14:56:




RESOLUTION NO. 2018 —

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF
1248-52 S. 23" STREET TO LILY SOUTH 23®° STREET, LLC

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank

(“Land Bank™) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of
the Land Bank, subject to approval of the Vacant Property Review Committee and resolution by
Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of Section 16-707; and

WHEREAS, the Vacant Property Review Committee reviewed the proposed transfer of 1248-52

S. 23/ Street (the "Property") at its public meeting held on May 8, 2018 and Philadelphia City Council
approved conveyance of the Property by Resolution No. 180575 adopted on June 7, 2018.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the Land

Bank to convey the Property; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the

Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1.

The conveyance of the Property to Lily South 231 Street, LLC for Three Hundred Sixty One Thousand
Dollars ($361,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved.

The conveyance of the Property complies with all terms and conditions of Section 16-707 of the
Philadelphia Code.

The Executive Director, Director of Real Estate, and Senior Counsel are each hereby authorized, in
the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform any and all
agreements, deeds, and other documents as may be necessary or desirable to consummate the
conveyance of the Property, which shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director
and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate, and, when so executed and delivered by the
Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land Bank. -

The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.



RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -

RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK, THE CITY OF
PHILADELPHIA, PHILADELPHIA SCHOOL DISTRICT AND PHILADELPHIA GAS
WORKS TO COORDINATE THE ACQUISITION OF TAX DELINQUENT PROPERTIES

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank™) entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding dated September 15, 2017 (the “Original MOU”) between the School District of
Philadelphia, the Philadelphia Gas Works, and the City of Philadelphia by and through its Office of the
Director of Finance, Department of Revenue, and Law Department (collectively, the “Parties™) to
memorialize a process for the Land Bank to identify and acquire delinquent properties at judicial sale
and to make payment to the City for certain amounts;

WHEREAS, the Land Bank and the Parties now desire to renew, extend, amend, and restate the
Original MOU pursuant to an Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding (“Amended and
Restated MOU™) as more specifically provided in the summary of major terms (“Summary™) attached to

this Resolution;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Board”) has determined
that entering into the Amended and Restated MOU is in the best interests of the Land Bank.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. The Executive Director is hereby authorized to enter into the Amended and Restated MOU in form and
substance acceptable to the Executive Director and Senior Counsel consistent with the Summary, but
with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify the Amended and Restated MOU which are in the
best interests of the Land Bank and which do not materially alter the substantive process now

represented in the attached Summary.

2. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.



Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding Between the Philadelphia Land Bank,
the City of Philadelphia, Philadelphia School District and Philadelphia Gas Works

Summary of Major Terms

Section 1 - Term

Change from the Original MOU to allow the term to automatically renew
- The term is now amended to commence on 9/18/2018 and end on
9/15/2019 and automatically renews for additional, consecutive, one-year
periods, unless terminated pursuant to Section 0.

Section 2 — Hold Requests

No change from the Original MOU — The Land Bank may not have in
effect at any given time more than five hundred (500) Hold Requests. As
properties are removed from the hold list, including properties that the
Land Bank has approved for acquisition with adequate funding and those
that are placed back onto the Tax Sale list, the Land Bank can request an
equivalent number of holds up to the five hundred (500) limit.

Section 3 — One-Hundred
and Twenty Day Hold

No change from the Original MOU - Upon receipt of a Hold Request, the
Departments flag the relevant delinquent account to prevent the property
from being exposed to Tax Sale for 120 days. A Hold Request prevents
the Departments, PGW, and Water from entering into a payment
agreement, other than as mandated by applicable (i) law, (ii) court order,
or (iii) regulatory ruling.

Section 4 - Prompt
Evaluation by the
Departments

Minimal change from the Original MOU to more accurately indicate
when the City will provide notice — At an appropriate time prior to Tax
Sale, the City submits notice to the Land Bank that it has placed the
property into one of two categories: Eligible for Tax Sale or Ineligible for
Tax Sale. If Eligible for Tax Sale, written notice includes the City’s best
estimate as to the earliest practicable date the property will be moved
through the Tax Sale process. If Ineligible for Tax Sale, the City will
inform the Land Bank as to the reason why the property is ineligible,
among those reasons listed in Section 5(a).

Section 5 - Eligibility for
Sale and Terms of Sale

No change from the Original MOU — Properties are Ineligible for Tax Sale
Properties if: (i) account is tax compliant (either full payment or approved
payment agreement); (ii) a court-ordered stay or postponement is in place;
(iii) account is under appeal; (iv) owner is in bankruptcy; (v) lien(s) have
been discharged in prior Tax Sale; or (v) Departments have a reasonable
suspicion that the lien(s) are defective.

No change from the Original MOU — For properties Eligible for Tax Sale
and which are acquired, the Land Bank will be required to pay the
Sheriff’s costs and the total Real Estate, Water and PGW liens due, up to
the OPA assessed value. The Land Bank will take responsibility for any
higher priority liens that survive the Tax Sale.

No change from the Original MOU — For properties where the Sheriff’s
costs and the Real Estate, Water, and PGW liens due, together with any
prior liens, such as certain federal and Commonwealth liens, exceed the
OPA assessed value, the Land Bank pays OPA assessed value. Where the

2




Land Bank pays OPA assessed value and that amount is not sufficient to
satisfy the Real Estate Tax, Water, and PGW debt, the amount paid will be
applied first to Sheriff’s costs, then to any liens with priority over real
estate taxes, then to real estate taxes, and finally, if funds remain, to Water
and PGW claims; and all remaining balances will be zeroed out by Law as
of the date of sale.

Section 6 — Discharge of
Liens

No change from the Original MOU — The Land Bank’s bid at Tax Sale
shall be the full amount due for all City Liens and PGW Liens as of the
date of the Tax Sale. The amount of the Land Bank’s bid shall have no
impact on the amount due from the Land Bank. Law and PGW coordinate
removal, release, and discharge of liens after sale.

Section 7 — Prompt Follow-
Up by the Land Bank

No change from the Original MOU — As soon as practicable after making
a Hold Request and receiving a determination on candidates marked
Eligible for Tax Sale, but in no case later than thirty (30) days before the
hold expires, the Land Bank shall evaluate whether it in fact intends to
acquire the property and shall give notice of that decision to the
Departments and PGW.

Section 8 — Hold Released
After One Hundred Twenty
(120) Days

No change from the Original MOU — If at end of 120 days from receipt of
a Hold Request, the Departments communicate the expiration of the hold
period and the Land Bank has neither communicated that it plans to
acquire nor requested an extension, the flag may be removed from the
property and ordinary collection — including Tax Sale — may resume.

Section 9 — Sixty (60) Day
Hold Extension

No change from the Original MOU — A hold may be extended for an
additional 60 days, but only once per property, and only if the total
number of Hold Requests remains within 500.

Section 11 — Notice of
Termination.

No change from the Original MOU — Any party can terminate upon 60
days notice to all other parties. The Departments will facilitate completion
of the acquisition of any properties approved by the Land Bank prior to
the effective date of such notice.




RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PERSONNEL TO EXECUTE SETTLEMENT SHEETS
ON BEHALF OF PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK UPON APPROVAL OF THE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, DIRECTOR OF REAL ESTATE, OR SENIOR COUNSEL

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Board”) has
determined that it is in the best interests of the Land Bank to authorize certain Land Bank staff
with the authority to execute settlement sheets on behalf of the Land Bank upon approval of
either the Executive Director, Director of Real Estate, or Senior Counsel.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the
Philadelphia Land Bank that:

1. Daiana Ramos is hereby authorized to execute and sign settlement sheets on behalf of the Land
Bank when approved to do so by either the Executive Director, Director of Real Estate, or

Senior Counsel.

2. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as
may be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents.

3. The execution of any settlement sheets by Daiana Ramos prior to the effectiveness of this
Resolution is hereby ratified and confirmed.

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.



